



Bachelor of Architecture



Joint Admission Counseling (JAC) 2021

Coordinated by:

INDIRA GANDHI DELHI TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY FOR WOMEN

Kashmere Gate, Delhi

Joint Admission Counseling (JAC) for admission to Undergraduate Programmes in premier Delhi Government funded universities, offering Engineering, Architecture and Management programmes started in the year 2014, as an initiative of the Govt. of NCT of Delhi, to avoid multiple admission counseling and save the candidates and their guardian from the resulting inconvenience because of shifting of students from one institution to the other during the admission process. This year Indira Gandhi Delhi Technical University for Women (IGDTUW) and Netaji Subhas University of Technology (NSUT) are participating in JAC for admission to **B.Arch.** program, which is being conducted online with the support of the National Informatics Centre (NIC).

The admissions to B.Arch.program are done on the basis of Merit Rank of students prepared giving equal weightage to NATA 2021 and qualifying exam. This year, 90 seats in Architecture, offered by the two participating institutions, are to be allotted through JAC Delhi B.Arch counseling. Because of the prevailing situation in the country, there has been a change in the counseling procedure and schedule of the counseling. In case of further unavoidable amendments in the counseling procedure and schedule, the same will be made available on the JAC Delhi website www.jacdelhi.nic.in. In view of this, candidates and their parents/guardians are advised to regularly visit the JAC Delhi website.

This year, Indira Gandhi Delhi Technical University For Women is the coordinating institution for JAC Delhi, B.Arch Admission.

CONTENTS

Chapter	Contents	Page No.
i i	Introduction	4
	Indira Gandhi Delhi Technical University for Women (IGDTUW)	4
	Netaji Subhas University of Technology (NSUT)	10
2	Eligibility Conditions	14
2.1	Eligibility Condition	14
2.2	Region	14
2.2.1	Delhi Region Candidates (85% of seats)	14
2.2.2	Outside Delhi Region Candidates (15% of seats)	14
2.3	Qualifying Examination	14
2.4	Minimum Marks Criterion in Qualifying Examination	15
2.5	Relaxation in Minimum Marks Criterion in Qualifying Examination for Reserved Category / Sub-Category Candidates	15
2.6	Allotment of Seat and Result Declaration	15
3 -	Reservation and Distribution of Seats	16
3.1	Reservation Policy	16
3.2	Seat Conversion rules	18
3.3	Certificates Required for Reserved Seats at the Time of Document Verification	18
3.4	University wise seat distribution	21
3.4.1	Seat Matrix for B. Arch. Program at Indira Gandhi Delhi Technical University for Women (IGDTUW)	22
3.4.2	Seat Matrix for B.Arch. program at Netaji Subhas University of Technology West campus (NSUT West Campus)	23
4	Online Registration Procedure	24
4.1	Online Registration and counseling fee payment	24
4.2	Choice filling, new registration in subsequent rounds & change of choices	25

Chapter	Contents	Page No.
4.3	Allotment of seat and result declaration	26
4.4	Online reporting	
4.5	4.5 Freezing / Upgradation	
4.6	General Instructions	27
5	Online Counselling Procedure	29
5.1	Seat Allotment – General Rules	29
5.2	Online counselling - Round one	29
5.3	Second round of Counselling	30
5.4	Upgradation or Sliding only round before spot round	30
5.5	Spot Round (subject to availability of seats)	31
5.6	Reporting at the Final allotted University	31
6	Fee Structure	32
6.1	Procedure to pay Admission Fee at the time of online counselling	
6.2	Procedure to pay balance admission fee	
6.3	Withdrawal of Allotted Seat and Refund of Fees	33
7	Certificates and Formats	34
7.1	Certificate in Respect of Defence Category(CW)	34
7.2	Medical Fitness Certificate	35
7.3	Certificate for Differently Abled Person (PD)	36
7.4	Suitability Certificate for Availing Admission against Differently Abled Person (PD)	
7.5	Certificate for Economically Weaker Section (EWS)	43
8	Annexure	44
8.1	Documents required at the time of Physical Reporting for Admission	45

Important Dates for Online Registration for B. Arch. Program

1.	Commencement of Online Registration and choice filling.	September 29, 2021 02:30 pm (WEDNESDAY)
3.	Last Date and Time for Online Registration (Registration Form filling, Registration fee payment and Choice filling.)	October 24, 2021 till 11:59 P.M. (SUNDAY)

<u>Important NOTE:</u> The above-mentioned dates refer to the starting and the closing dates for the registration for the first round of counseling. However, if a candidate misses out the above deadlines for any reason, he/she may participate in further rounds through fresh registration before starting of another round, as detailed in the counseling schedule.

Under no circumstances, the candidate registering in later rounds can claim for seats allotted to other candidates in previous rounds in lieu of his/her merit. Therefore, all interested candidates are advised to register and participate in the JAC Delhi 2021 counseling for Admission to B.Arch program from the very beginning, i.e. the above mentioned deadlines.

Registration-cum-Counseling Fee

Rs. 750/- + Transaction Charges (as applicable)

University Nomenclature and Duration of Course

S. No.	University / Institute	Course	Duration
1.	Indira Gandhi Delhi Technical University for Women (IGDTUW) (for female candidates only)	B. Arch.	5 Years
2.	Netaji Subhas University of Technology(NSUT) West Campus, Jaffarpur	B. Arch.	5 Years

Chapter 1 Introduction

Indira Gandhi Delhi Technical University for Women (IGDTUW)

(Established by the Government of NCT of Delhi vide Delhi Act 9 of 2012)

(An ISO 9001:2015 Certified University)

Education - Enlightenment - Empowerment

A Country's progress is incomplete if the women are not empowered. Education is the first step towards it which makes women self-reliant and contribute towards society. In May 2013, **Indira Gandhi Delhi Technical University for Women (IGDTUW)** was established and is now a completely self-reliant University imparting high quality technical education exclusively for Women on its Kashmere Gate heritage Campus situated in the heart of Delhi. In last seven years, the University has achieved a number of milestones, to name a few recent ones are:

- Ranked 2nd (under Women Colleges and Universities) and in Band A (under Overall Ranking) in Atal Ranking of Institutions on Innovation Achievements (ARIIA)-2020 Awarded by Hon'ble Vice President of India on 18th August, 2020.
- Conferred with FICCI University of the Year-2021 Award for its continuous commitment towards Quality Education.
- Awarded the 2ndfastest growing University by India Today group-2021.
- Ranked in the band of 101-200 by prestigious 'Times Higher Education World Impact Rankings 2021' for Sustainable Development Goal (SDG-4 & SDG-5) i.e. Quality Education & Gender Equality
- IGDTUW is the only Government University in India, selected by QS I QUAGE for awards of E LEAD INSTITUTE for E-Learning Excellence for Academic Digitization.
- Awarded with a Diamond Rated University through rigorous analysis against performance metrics by QS I-Gauge (Indian College & University Rating)
- Ranked 16th for Entrepreneurial Spirit and 64th in Innovative University in World University Ranking Impact (WURI) 2021.

IGDTUW functions efficiently as a Teaching & Learning, Research-Oriented Center in various branches of Engineering, Technology and Management promoting advancement and dissemination of research led knowledge among women from all over the country. It helps our country 'India' to meet the requirements of professionally skilled (with ethical values) women workforce in high-tech domains. The strategic intent (VMO) of the University is to foster industry relevant research and innovations and empower the women of our country through value based higher education making them Employable, Self-Reliant, Entrepreneurship Development, Responsible Citizen of the country with concern for Environment and Society.

The university is committed about developing Sustainable systems and State-of-the-Art infrastructure to enable the Indian women to become future Leaders, Managers, Researchers, and Productive Team Players in the field of Science, Engineering, Technology and Management.

Infrastructure and Transforming students into Leaders through Meticulous Programs

IGDTUW has a State-of-the-Art infrastructure comprising of modern well-equipped Labs, fully Wi-Fi enabled campus, Computer Centre, fully Automated Library, Auditorium, Multi-purpose Hall, Conference Room, Seminar Room, Hostels, Sports & Recreational Facilities, etc.

The university has worked hard to build a strong Academic Curriculum with a rich diversity of courses and is working towards new Academic Initiatives. Academic Innovations have always been topmost in the priorities of the University.

With globalization, today's graduates need to be flexible, to be able to learn quickly and to be able to innovate to produce products and services that can cater to local needs and global standards. The institute has designed the B. Tech. and BArch curriculum from the ground up to produce Technology-savvy Leaders and Designers for future India through the Choice Based Credit System (CBCS) based curriculum where student has freedom to study subjects of her choice.

Curriculum includes subjects from Departmental Core Courses, Departmental Elective Courses, Allied Elective Courses and Generic Open Elective Courses. Students can also join MOOC courses from NPTEL and others. Students can choose the **Project Track, Research Track or Entrepreneur Track** based on her interest for minor and major project work.

The curriculum has a broad base of courses in Architecture, Urban Planning, Engineering, Management and Humanities. The syllabi are continuously updated and new courses are added from time to time. Academic Council and the Boards of Studies have representations from industry in addition to academicians from top Academic Institutions. University is offering the following programs:

Under Graduate Programs:

- Bachelor of Architecture (B.Arch.)*
- Bachelor of Technology (B.Tech.) in
 - Computer Science & Engineering
 - Computer Science & Engineering (Artificial Intelligence)
 - Information Technology
 - Electronics & Communication Engineering
 - Electronics & Communication Engineering (Artificial Intelligence)
 - Mechanical & Automation Engineering
- Six Years Dual Degree Bachelor of Mechanical and Automation Engineering (B.Tech.-MAE) and Master of Business Administration (MBA) with Exit Option after 4 years
- Bachelor of Business Administration (BBA)

Post Graduate Programs

- Master of Technology in CSE (Artificial Intelligence)/IT (Cyber Forensics)./ECE (VLSI)/Robotics and Automation
- Master of Planning (Urban Planning)
- Master of Business Administration (MBA)
- Master of Computer Applications (MCA)

PhD programs in all Engineering Branches, Science and Humanities

Ecosystem for Research

Research is an integral and most important part of IGDTUW. As a Technical University we are keen on promoting faculty and students for research work.

a. Promote Quality Research

- Research Incentives and Awardsto celebrate exceptional performances: Every year, faculty members/PG/PhD researchers are awarded with a Cash Prize & Award for outstanding contribution to Research.
- ii. Research Awards for Students: To boost the culture of Research & Innovation, students at UG/PG Level are bestowed with Cash Prize & Certificates for best paper publication.
- iii. Research Grants: IGDTUW provides financial assistance to all the faculties/students to participate in conferences at National/International level.
- b. Promote Sponsored Research: IGDTUW has fetched more than 15 projects from Department of Science & Technology (DST), Ministry of IT & Electronics (MietY), Department of IT and Electronics (DietY), Ministry of Education (MoE) etc with the funding of more than Rs. 20 Crores.
- c. Centre of Excellence: It is a matter of immense pride and honour for faculty and students of IGDTUW that the university is setting up following Centre of Excellence (CoE):
 - i. Centre of Excellence (CoE) in Artificial Intelligence: IGDTUW has received a whooping grant of Rs. 8.5 Crores from DST for establishing CoE in AI.

- ii. Centre of Excellence in Mechatronics: IGDTUW has received a massive funding of Rs. 8.67 Cr, given by DKDF, Delhi Govt. for set up CoE in Mechatronics to promote research on Drones, Robotics and Industrial Automation.
- NIDHI TBI: Department of Science & Technology, GoI has sanctioned Rs. 6 Crores to accelerate & boost Innovation, Entrepreneurship, Start-ups and Incubation related activities at the University Campus.
- d. Prestigious Collaborations: IGDTUW has partnered with several industries for knowledge updation& bridging the gap between academia and industry. Few of these collaborations worth mentioning are: NASSCOM & CISCO for setting up of thingQbator Innovation Lab &M/s Flour Daniel for setting up Turning Lab (both under their CSR activities), EATON Foundation for Internship placement and scholarship to students, IBM India Pvt Ltd for academic growth and Technological advancement, Amazon AWS, Ennoble IP, GiZ Germany, etc.

Clubs and Societies: Students are encouraged to take part in various curricular and extra-curricular activities, competitions, Hackathon etc. On several occasions, they represented the university and won prizes and medals at National/International Levels and brought laurels to the university. The University has Seven Technical Societies like ACM chapter, IEEE, OSA, WiBD etc., Fourteen Institute Level Societies and Four Clubs focusing on various Technical, Art & Culture and Environment activities.

Fee Waiver/Scholarships/Financial Support:

Various Fee Waiver/Scholarships/Financial support schemes have been incepted in IGDTUW to motivate the meritorious students and to support the students from economically weaker sections.

- Students get benefit from various Government Schemes like Merit Scholarship, Merit-cum-Means scholarship, Post Matric Scholarship, Prime Minister Scholarship and others.
- Students are facilitated and supported to apply for Scholarships at Centre, their home State, Corporates. Further details are available on IGDTUW Website.
- 100% Tuition Fee Waiver to students having NATA score 135 and above*
- 100% Tuition Fee Waiver to First Rank Holder of BArch Program under EWS Category *.

Alumni Network

The University's Alumni Body is a vast and thriving community of Technocrats, Architects, Senior Executives, Successful Entrepreneurs, and Leaders of Society. Internships with government bodies and various MNCs are encouraged for more holistic learning. An exhaustive list of Alumni is working at National/International Arena bringing laurels to the University.

Many Engineering Alumni of the University of Johns Hopkins, CMU, University of California, Berkeley, UCLA, New York University, University of Michigan, IIT Roorkee, IIT Mumbai, etc pursuing higher studies.

For an Empowered Future

Anveshan Foundation recognized as NIDHI-TBI - Technology Business Incubator to boost start-up ecosystem.

- Indira Gandhi Delhi Technical University for Women (IGDTUW) has promoted and incorporated a separate Section 8 Company 'IGDTUW Anveshan Foundation' under the Companies Act, 2013 to propagate entrepreneurial culture and ecosystem among women.
- All kind of facilitation (pertaining to the start-up ecosystem) in five phases of complete incubation and venture development cycle i.e. i) Pre-incubation, ii) Incubation, iii) Acceleration, iv) Post-incubation and even v) Virtual Incubation are provided by Anveshan Foundation.
- Anveshan Foundation is conducting regular internships, pragmatic workshops and short-term courses on a) Start-up
 Management, b) Innovation & Entrepreneurship, c) Digital Marketing, d) Python, e) Family Business &
 Entrepreneurship and in many more technical and non-technical areas for confidence building among aspiring
 women entrepreneurs.

^{*}Note: For details guidelines refer to university website.

Incubation Center has also signed ten MoUs with other colleges, institutes and universities to facilitate and establish
incubation centers in their premises and to accelerate and diversify businesses of their students and Incubatees
through various channels.

"Our vision is to make India a Knowledge Society and Economy by empowering the women of our country through education in Engineering, Science, Management, and Technology."

Department of Architecture and Planning IGDTUW

(B.Arch Program Approved by Council of Architecture)

The Department of Architecture and Planning, IGDTUW started offering its Bachelor of Architecture program from the year 2015 as a step towards social equity and gender parity in technical professions, having a vision that architectural education should empower students to become protagonists of positive change by exploring learning and practicing a sustainable form of architecture. The barch program is approved by Council of Architecture.

Its curriculum and pedagogy focuses on playing a transformative force for a more inclusive, humane, responsive and sustainable architecture and planning through cultivation of creativity, critical thinking, compassion, and collaborative working culture. The Department has highly qualified faculty members who are licensed architects by the Council of Architecture and are post graduates from eminent universities like IIT, SPA and CEPT, in diverse fields like master of architecture, landscape architecture, urban planning, construction management, industrial design, etc. Besides regular faculty the Department also has outstanding and experienced visiting faculty. Architecture and Planning education is geared towards deepening awareness about environmental as well as social issues and realities. Besides imparting knowledge, there will also be an endeavor to create opportunities for students to engage with real life issues, so that they can reflect on their role in creating a better world.

The University is continuously striving hard not to keep students confined in the classrooms but to educate them through involvement in real life projects, along with decision makers at highest level in government. IGDTUW is actively working for engagement with various civic bodies in Delhi like South Delhi Municipal Corporation (SDMC), North Delhi Municipal Corporation (NDMC) and East Delhi Municipal Corporation (EDMC) to ensure that the students get multiple and diverse project opportunities and develop a nuanced understanding of role as responsive urban planners. IGDTUW has recently signed a MoU with SDMC, NDMC and EDMC in the office of Hon'ble Lieutenant Governor of Delhi to work on planning and design projects in Delhi.

Programmes offered by Department of Architecture and Planning

Currently Department of Architecture and Planning is offering following programmes:

Bachelor of Architecture - Five Year Program

Master of Planning (Urban Planning) - Two Year Program

Training and Placements

- Since the first batch of B.Arch, the students of the department have interned and have joined in
 internationally acclaimed architectural firms like NBCC, INTACH, GP Mathur Architects and Planners,
 Vinyas, CP Kukreja Architects, Design Forum International, Design Atelier etc. Students also engage in
 summer schools/ workshops in prestigious organizations like IIT Kanpur, IIT Roorkee, IIT Mumbai,
 Auroville, INTACH etc
- Many students have been successful in securing admission in various post-graduation programs, in the
 domain of architecture and allied fields, at prestigious institutions of India like IIT Roorkee, IIT Kharagpur,
 IIT Mumbai, SPA Delhi, SPA Bhopal, CEPT Ahmedabad apart from various other prestigious institutions
 and also abroad like University of Calgary, Canada, Trinity College Dublin etc.

Lab and Studio Infrastructure

The department is well equipped with not just lecture rooms but also well-equipped labs that enables students to obtain deep, hands on, experimental and modern academic learning

Computer lab:

- The CAD Lab has state-of-the-art computers with latest versions of software and operating system to develop skills of students in 2D drafting and 3D modelling. The lab also has softwares to assist students in climatic analysis of building designs andmodelling.
- The University has received a grant from the Department of Science and Technology under which the department has procured high quality equipment like 3-D printer, to support research and academic activities in the department.



Survey lab:

Survey lab is well equipped with various surveying
instruments which are also regularly used for site survey on which design problems are based in order to
develop analytical skills of students.

Carpentry, Metal work workshop:

• The workshop is well equipped and students are regularly given demonstrations in timber and metal work to build deeper and nuanced understanding of materials.

Material Museum:

 The Department has a well-stocked material museum, to expose students to various dimensions and properties of materials, and also challenges of their use and installation on site.

Climatology Lab:

The Department has established a climatology lab. The
equipments of lab are extensively used for climatic
analysis of both existing and new to-be constructed
buildings, so that bio climatic comfort can be created
in a cost-effective way using passive design methods.

Resource Room:

 A resource room has also been established in the Department having various resources in both print and model form for practical understanding.

Studios:

• The studios are unique spaces pertaining to architectural studies where the students learn the process of design and the related supporting subjects. In the department, the studios are well equipped with drafting tables, drafting stools, blackboards and whiteboards, overhead projectors and digital podia which make the teaching learning process wholesome and high quality.

Events and Activities

The Department of Architecture and Planning, strives to provide students with a rich learning experience by conducting hands-on workshops, lectures, seminar, educational trips etc. Some of them are mention below





- The Expert Lecture Series on "SDG's in Practice" September-October 2021, where senior experts from industry, across the nation, would be talking about the various dimensions of Sustainable Development
- National Workshop on Thoughtful Cooling held on 16th 20th September 2019 organized by the Department of Architecture & Planning, Indira Gandhi Delhi Technical University for Women (IGDTUW) and sponsored by the Department of Science and Technology, Ministry of Science and Technology, Government of India as part of activities benefiting from CURIE grant initiative.



- Awareness Programme via Webinar on Eco-Niwas Samhita Code 2018 held on 24th July 2020 organized by the Department of Architecture and Planning, IGDTUW with Eco Niwas Samhita incoordination with Pricewater HouseCooper. The session covered ENS Awareness and its technical aspects along with compliance tools.
- "Emerging Phenomena & Design Strategies in Architecture" an Exhibition of student work held on 20th November 2019
- Department regularly conducts field visits for practical learning at pan India level and students have visited places in Gujarat, Punjab, Uttar Pradesh, Uttarakhand, Haryana during pre COVID times for habitat studies.
- Students regularly participate in National and zonal level students' convention organized by National
 Association of Students of Architecture (NASA) and have won awards in various events at the conventions in
 the past.
- The department holds exhibitions of students' works on a regular basis which it is very proud of.

Netaji Subhas University of Technology (NSUT) (Formerly Netaji Subhas Institute of Technology)

(Established by the Government of NCT of Delhi vide Delhi Act 06 of 2018)

Netaji Subhas University of Technology (NSUT) is a seat of higher technical education in India. It was established in 1983 in response to the rising demands of human resource in engineering and technology with a close social and industrial interface. Over a period of time, the University has carved a distinct niche for itself, both nationally and internationally.

Govt. of NCT Delhi has expanded the NSUT in 2020 further into two more campuses namely East Campus (FormerlyAmbedkar Institute of Advanced Communication Technologies & Research) at Geeta Colony and West Campus (Formerly Ch. BrahmPrakash Government Engineering College) at Jaffarpur. The Main Campus of University is located at Sector-3 Dwarka, having a lush green campus spread across 145 acres, to house a diverse community of students, faculty, staff and visitors. A total of thirteen academic departments work in concerted awareness to ensure that students receive the highest possible quality education with wide assimilation.

NSUT continues to be a prominent place in popular surveys. The University has been ranked among the top engineering colleges including the IITs and NITs. An amalgamation of its efforts to maintain this benchmark has steered NSUT towards reaching newer and bigger goals. The students have won laurels for their alma mater in several national and international competitions. Year after year, students have availed internships (in MNCs, PSUs and foreign universities). A number of students of NSUT have also been offered admission in the MS/MBA programs in some of the most prestigious universities across the globe. This provides them with an exposure to the world beyond and helps them to imbibe variegated learning experience. Students have also succeeded in getting their research papers published in reputed international journals and conference proceedings every year. The University is a signatory of MoUs with over a dozen international universities and organizations.

Vision:

To be a premiere University of global recognition that provides excellence in Education, Research and Development, to create potential innovators and leaders to serve Society and Nation.

Mission:

- To promote academic growth by offering state-of-the-art Undergraduate, Postgraduate and Doctoral programs and to impart emerging and new knowledge in Research & Development.
- To identify the thrust area of specialization in education based on perception of Regional and National as well as global needs.
- To undertake collaborative projects which offer opportunities for long term interaction with leading Academia and Industries to cater to the needs of the Society and Nation.
- To foster human potential by inculcating responsible behavior, Environment, improvement, Ethics, Innovation and Entrepreneurship.

Programs offered

The Main Campus of University offers 13 B.Tech, 11 M.Tech, 2 MBA and 2 M.Sc. programs. Besides this, it offers Bachelors in Fashion Technology and Business Administration.

The East Campus offers 3B.Tech and 4 M.Tech programs.

The West Campus offers 3 B.Techand 1 M. Tech. programs. Besides this it offers Bachelor of Architecture (B.Arch.) course. The B.Arch course of NSUT west campus is approved by the Council of Architecture (vide letter F. No. CA/5/Academic-APP/N/DL/2021/3149-DL-10, dated: 15/9/2021.

The University also offers Ph.D programs in engineering, sciences, management, humanities and social sciences. NSUT has implemented Choice Based Credit System (CBCS) for selection of subjects to the students. It includes Core courses, Foundation courses and Elective courses.

Details of UG programs in NSUT are as given below

Programme Name	Programme Code	Number of Seats
NSUT, Main Campus, Dwarka		
Bio-Technology	BT	75
Computer Science and Engineering	CSE	180
Computer Science and Engineering (Artificial Intelligence)	CSAI	120
Computer Science and Engineering (Data Science)	CSDS	60
Electrical Engineering	EE	150
Electronics and Communication Engineering	ECE	180
Electronics and Communication Engineering (Internet of Things)	EIOT	60
Information Technology	IT	120
Information Technology (Network and Information Security)	ITNS	60
Instrumentation and Control Engineering	ICE	150
Mathematics and Computing	MAC	75
Manufacturing Processes and Automation Engineering	MPAE	75
Mechanical Engineering	ME	150
NSUT, East Campus, Geeta Colon	у	
Computer Science and Engineering (Big Data Analytics)	CSDA	60
Electronics and Communication Engineering (Artificial Intelligence and Machine Learning)	ECAM	120
Computer Science and Engineering (Internet of Things)	CIOT	60
NSUT, West Campus, Jaffarpur		
Civil Engineering	CE	60
Geoinformatics	GI	60
Mechanical Engineering (Electric Vehicles)	MEEV	60
Bachelor of Architecture	B. Arch.	40

NSUT offers its B. Tech. students the option of Minor degree in various disciplines. Minor degree refers to a supplemental second discipline of study and concentration that often complements the major. Some students use a minor degree to pursue personal interests, while other students may pursue a minor to gain specific specialization and make themselves more attractive to employers. University has laid out a framework of required courses a student is required to complete to earn their selected minor.

For example, student of Bio-Technology or Instrumentation and Control Engineering or Mechanical Engineering or Electronics and Communication Engineering may opt for minor degree in Artificial Intelligence along with Major degree in BT or ICE or ME or ECE. Similarly, a student of Computer Science and Engineering may opt for Minor degree in Data Science or Robotics and AI or Health Technologies or any other of his/her choice. Minor degrees offered by various departments of NSUT are as given below.

Department	Minor Degrees
Electronics and Communication Engineering	Communication and Networking
	RF Microwave and Signal Processing
	Microelectronics and Embedded Systems
Computer Science and Engineering	Artificial Intelligence
	Data Science
	Software Designing and Development
Information Technology	Network Computing and Security
	Machine Intelligence and Data Analytics

Mechanical Engineering Automobile

Computer Aided Design

Robotics and AI

Manufacturing & Industrial Engineering

Instrumentation and Control Engineering Biomedical Instrumentation

Robotics and AI Intelligent Control

Electrical Engineering Renewable Energy Systems

Power Systems

Power Electronics and Electric Drives

Health Technologies

Agriculture and Environment Technologies

Civil Engineering Geoinformatics

Biological Sciences and Engineering

Research

The faculty and students at NSUT are active in research areas such as Analog Signal Processing, VLSI, Wireless and Optical Communications, Image Processing, RF and Microwave Engineering, Computer Networks, Artificial Intelligence, Data Science, Software Engineering, Soft Computing, Robotics, Industrial Engineering, Composites, Welding, Modern Methods of Manufacturing, Industrial Engineering, Process Control, Renewable Energy, Power Electronics, Hybrid Energy System, Bio-medical Instrumentation, and Intelligent Control. The faculty members have published more than 1200 research papers in reputed international journals and conferences since 2016. They have also won several awards for their research contributions.

Student's achievements

The University students have been a regular recipient of accolades at various International events and competitions. CANSAT - Team Kalpana-1, an undergraduate student's team, reached the finals of CANSAT Competition 2018 conducted by American Astronautical Society (AAS) and NASA by securing a percentile rank 7 out of 165 teams worldwide. A Delegation of students from NSUT was awarded the Outstanding Delegate accolade in World Health Organization and the Diplomatic Mention award in GA - SPECPOL at the 64th edition of Harvard National Model United Nations in 2018. Team Ares, a team of space enthusiasts, qualified for the European Rover Challenge 2018 which was conducted by the Mars Society &The European Space Society and is the first and only Indian team to qualify in their first attempt. Venture Deeproots, a company that makes Computer Vision based Intelligent Platform, won the award for the 'Most Investable Idea' at YSIF, Peking University, Beijing. It was the only Indian enterprise to be selected among 35 excellent ideas presented at the summit.

Campus Facilities

The University Campus has Medical Facility (including Physiotherapy and Homeopathy), Power backup, Incubator centre (for students, alumni and faculty), yoga & meditation Centre, Gym facility, University management system, university networking system, internet facilities, broadband facilities, fully Wi-Fi campus, CCTV cameras, bio metric system, Student Activity Centre, sports complex, Two banks, ATM, beautiful horticulture department & landscaping lawns and a shopping complex. A prominent feature of NSUT's campus is the vast expanse of flora & fauna that envelopes its entirety.

Placements

The past performance of the outgoing batches has done us proud. In the past, eight students have been offered an annual package of Rs. 1.25 crores by Google. Apart from that, various companies like Goldman Sachs, Intuit, Microsoft, Amazon, Walmart, Linkedin, Tower Research, Adobe, Direct I among others have been visiting NSUT regularly for placements and the number of companies has been on the rise ever since. A number of PSUs have also visited the University and have been recruiting regularly. NSUT has also witnessed its alumni become administrators by bagging Ranks 1 and 3 in the UPSC examinations.

Incubation and Innovation Foundation (NSUT-IIF)

NSUT has Incubation and Innovation Foundation (NSUT-IIF) within the university campus. It was opened to incubate startups of NSUT students, alumni, faculty of NSUT, any other incubatee under the guideline of Delhi Government at NSUT for two years with seed money/funding from the NSUT-IIF. NetajiSubhas University of Technology won the first prize in the category "Institution Supporting Startups" sponsored by NitiAayog and All India Council for Technical Education (AICTE). NSUT IIF provides a host of support services to start-ups and

organizes selection of newer incubatees. Some of the startups incubated by NSUT IIF are Zalonin, Vkarma, CacheFi and Bonfarmo. Various societies at NSUT like IEEE, SAE, ISA, CSI, and CEDT Lab at NSUT have helped students learn skills to develop technology based projects.

Central Library

NSUT Central-Library is the heart of University. It functions from first & mezzanine floors of centrally air-conditioned Library building having plinth area of 2000 square meter. It is the largest library in the cluster, 'Delhi Government Library Network' of 'A Digital Agenda for Automation and Networking of Government Libraries from NIC'. It works to meet and promote the needs of print/electronic publications for teaching, research, training and working of each member of the University to ensure quality education & development of the nation. The automated and personalized library services are provided to each user through his/her mobile phone.

Sports Activities

NSUT offers state of art facilities in the domain of physical education, providing, fully air-conditioned Gymnasium with all the latest fitness and strength equipments, air-conditioned facility of Billiards, Pool Table and Table Tennis, indoor Badminton Court, International Size Cricket Ground with three Center Turf Pitches, Practice cricket Nets, Basket ball Courts, Volleyball Courts, Lawn Tennis Courts, 400 meter cinder Running Track, International Size Football Field. The students of NSUT participated at the various North Zone Inter University, All India Inter University Tournaments and various other national level tournaments organized by IITs, NITs and other professional Institutions. Besides participation at various sports, the Department also organizes various Inter College and Inter University Tournaments. The University is running the Foundation Elective (Sports -01 and Sports-02) course under CBCS scheme under the Department of Personality Development. The university provides professional coaching to the students of the university through professional sports coaches.

Societies and Clubs

To inculcate team values and nurture the talent of students, various university level societies and clubs are active in the campus like Technical Societies, Non-Technical Societies, Recreational Clubs, Literary Clubs, Automotive Clubs and Community Service Initiatives.

Fee reimbursement and Incentives

NSUT has introduced the fee reimbursement for top ranking students admitted in University and the financial assistance for financially weaker students as per ChhatraVittiyaSahaytaEvamProtsahanKosh (CVSPK) Scheme-2020. This Scheme also has the provision to give incentives for joining Defense Services or IIMs or top ranking Universities of the world, and also for selection in national level competitive examinations as GATE and UPSC. More information can be accessed at university website.

East Campus

The Campus is located at Geeta Colony, East Delhi having an area of 8.5 acres in which a state-of-art campus with ultra-modern facilities and lush green ambiance all around is built. It has four academic departments, decorated with highly educated faculty members and well-equipped laboratories. This campus is well connected to the city transport system like city-bus, metro etc. and has the facilities like centralized air conditioning in all the labs, RO system for drinking water, well equipped library, centralized computer centre, playground, rain harvesting system, nursery etc.

West Campus

The west campus is connected by Delhi Metro and Delhi Transport Corporation buses. The nearest metro station, 'Dhansa Bus stand' on Grey Line, is approximately 08 kilometers away from the college. DTC buses also provide convenient routes to reach the campus. GraminSewas and private mini-buses provide shuttle service from Dhansa Bus stand' metro station. It provides adequate opportunities to budding engineers and makes them ready to be adequately shaped for taking the challenges of evolving national and international engineering market. All the laboratories are well equipped. Since 2015, an English Language Laboratory has also been added where mock interviews, group discussions, lectures *etc* are conducted for the students. There is the summer and winter training programs for all the students such as survey camp for the Civil Engineering students so that their field surveying skills can be honed.

The University has grown in leaps and bounds, since its inception, both in size and its scope of activities. The overall environment has been nourishing excellence in education, research and personal development of students and faculty members. All in all, the NSUT is doing its country proud.

For further details: Please visit: www.nsut.ac.in

Chapter 2 Eligibility Conditions

2.1 Eligibility Condition

The Eligibility conditions for admission to B.Architecture Programme are:

- 1) No candidate shall be admitted to architecture course unless he/she has passed an examination at the end of the 10+2 scheme of examination with Physics, Chemistry, Mathematics and English subjects or passed 10+3 Diploma Examination with Mathematics as compulsory subject, as the case may be.
- 2) The candidate who has qualified the aptitude test i.e. NATA 2021, with pass percentage * in 10+2 scheme of examination with Physics, Chemistry, Mathematics and English subjects or passed 10+3 Diploma Examination with Mathematics as compulsory subject shall be eligible for admission to B.Arch course for the academic session 2021- 2022.

*The eligibility criteria on the basis of pass percentage is valid for the academic session 2021-2022 only

2.2 Region

85% seats in all the participating institutions are earmarked for Resident Indian Nationals belonging to Delhi region (as specified below), while the rest 15% seats are earmarked for Resident Indian Nationals belonging to outside Delhi region

2.2.1 Delhi Region Candidates (85% of seats)

A candidate passing the qualifying examination from a recognized School / College / Institute located within the National Capital Territory (NCT) of Delhi will be considered for Delhi Region only.

2.2.2 Outside Delhi Region Candidates (15% of seats)

A candidate passing the qualifying examination from a recognized School / College / Institute located outside the National Capital Territory of Delhi will be considered for Outside Delhi Region only.

Note: For a candidate, who has passed the qualifying examination through PatracharVidyalaya, Delhi / National Institute of Open School, Delhi (NIOS), the criterion for deciding the region shall be the location of his/her centre of examination. In other words, if the centre of examination is located in the NCT of Delhi, the candidate shall be considered under the **Delhi Region** and if the centre of examination is located outside NCT of Delhi, he/she shall be considered under the **Outside Delhi Region**.

2.3 Qualifying Examination

The qualifying examination for admission to B.Arch program will be any one of the following examination:

- (i) Senior School Certificate Examination (12-year 10+2 course) of the Central Board of Secondary Education (CBSE), New Delhi.
- (ii) Indian School Certificate Examination (12-year 10+2 course) of the Council for Indian School Certificate Examination, New Delhi.
- (iii) 10+3 Diploma with Mathematics as compulsory subject, recognized by the Centre / State Government
- (iv) Any other examination recognized as equivalent to the Senior School Certificate Examination of the CBSE

Note: Candidates who have appeared at the annual examination in the year 2021 and have been placed in compartment will not be eligible for admission for the year 2021.

2.4 Minimum Marks Criterion in Qualifying Examination

For Academic Year 2021-22, only pass percentage in qualifying exam is required for admission to B.Arch.

2.5 Minimum Marks Criterion in Qualifying Examination for Reserved Category / Sub-Category Candidates

As eligibility for admission to B.Arch. program is pass percentage only, there is no relaxation in minimum marks criterion for reserved category/ Sub- Category This is applicable for 2021-22 session only.

2.6 Allotment of Seat and Result Declaration

1) Allotment of seat: Merit Rank list shall be prepared based on:

i) NATA 2021 score (NATA Qualified)

50% weightage

ii) Qualifying Examination
(i.e., percentage of aggregate marks of best five subjects among all papers offered to the student, in 10+2 including Physics, Chemistry, Mathematics and English Subjects OR 10+3 years diploma recognized by the Centre / State Government, with

Mathematics as compulsory subject

50% weightage

2) Tie Breaking Criterion

In the case of candidates securing equal merit ranks, following criteria will be adopted to determine the merit rank:

- i. The Candidate getting higher score in NATA;
- ii. In case of candidates securing equal scores in NATA, then the candidate getting higher marks in Mathematics of the qualifying examination;
- iii. In case of tie in (i) and (ii) above, the candidate getting higher marks in qualifying examination;
- iv. In case of tie in (i), (ii) and (iii) above, the candidate older in age shall rank higher.
- 3) Result Declaration: Result of seat allotment in various rounds will be declared as per the Counseling Schedule. The selected candidate can view/print the provisional seat allotment letter after logging into his/her account on link available on www.jacdelhi.nic.in
- 4) Age Criterion- There is no minimum or maximum age criterion.

Note:

- 1. Filling of correct marks of the qualifying exam is the sole responsibility of the candidate. Candidate must ensure that details filled by him/her are correct.
- 2. If any discrepancy is found, the candidate is liable to be disqualified from Round 1 to Round 2 online counseling and shall be considered only in Spot Round

Chapter 3 Reservations and Distribution of Seats

3.1 Reservation Policy

- a) Scheduled Caste (SC): 15 % of the total seats are reserved for Scheduled Caste candidates.
- b) Scheduled Tribe (ST): 7.5 % of the total seats are reserved for candidates belonging to Scheduled Tribe
- c) Other Backward Class (OBC): 27% of the total seats are reserved for candidates belonging to Other Backward Class (Non-Creamy Layer).
- d) Economically Weaker Section (EWS): 10% of the total seats are reserved for candidates belonging to Economically Weaker Section.

Further Sub-categories, namely, 'Defence' and 'Person with Disabilities' are available under each main category (General, SC, ST, OBC and EWS).

e) Defence (CW): 5% of the total seats in each main category are reserved for candidates belonging to Defence sub-category in the following order of priority:

Priority I - Widows/wards of Defence personnel killed in action.

Required Certificate (Proof in Original)

- a. Service particulars with family details
- b. PPO of Liberalised Family Pension
- c. Education Concession Certificate/Widow I-Card issued by Zila/ Rajya/ KendriyaSainik Board

Priority II - Wards of disabled in action and boarded out / invalid out from service.

Required Certificate (Proof in Original)

- a. Discharge Certificate with family details
- b. PPO of War Injury
- c. Original disability certificate clearly indicating the disability is attributable to Military Services and was boarded out
- d. Education Concession Certificate/War disabled I-Card issued by Zila/Rajya/KendriyaSainik Board

Priority III - Widows/wards of Defence Personnel who died while in service with death attributable to military service.

Required Certificate (Proof in Original)

- a. Service particulars
- b. PPO of Special Family Pension with death attributable to Military Service
- c. Education Concession Certificate/Widow I-Card issued by Zila/Rjaya/KendriyaSainik Board

Priority IV - Wards of disabled in service and boarded/invalid out with disability attributable to military service.

Required Certificate (Proof in Original)

- a. Discharge Certificate with remarks medical boarded out, disability attributable to military service
- b. PPO
- c. Education Concession Certificate/ I-Card issued by Zila/Rajya/KendriyaSainik Board

Priority V - Wards of Ex-Servicemen and serving personnel/para military/police personnel who are in receipt of the following Gallantry Awards:

i. ParamVir Chakra

ii. Ashok Chakra

iii. MahaVir Chakra

iv. Kirti Chakra

v. Vir Chakra

vi. Shaurya Chakra

vii. Sena/ NauSena/ VayuSena Medal

viii. Mention-in-Despatches

ix. President's Police Medal for

Gallantry

x. Police Medal for Gallantry

Required Certificate (Proof in Original)

- a. Retired Personnel discharge Certificate
- b. PPO
- c. Proof of Gallantry Award
- d. Education Concession Certificate/ ESM I-Card issued by ZilaSainik Board

(In case of serving awardees, education concession certificate will be issued by Unit and countersigned by Zila/Rajya/KendriyaSainik Board with proof of Gallantry Award)

Priority VI - Wards of Ex-Servicemen

Required Certificate (Proof in Original):

- a. Discharge Certificate /Service Particulars
- b. Original ex-servicemen Identity Card
- c. PPO
- d. Education Concession Certificate/ ESM / Widow I-Card issued by Zila/Rajya/KendriyaSainik Board

Priority VII - Wives of:

i. defence personnel disabled in action and boarded out from service.

Required Certificate (Proof in Original):

Original disability certificate clearly indicating the disability is attributable to Military Services in action and was boarded out

ii. defence personnel disabled in service and boarded out with disability attributable to military service.
 Required Certificate (Proof in Original):

Original disability certificate clearly indicating the disability is attributable to Military Services and was boarded out.

iii. ex-Servicemen and serving personnel who are in receipt of Gallantry Awards.

Required Certificate (Proof in Original):

Only the Gallantry Awards specified in Priority V shall be considered

Priority VIII - Wards of Serving Personnel.

Required Certificate: (Proof in Original)

Original Service Identity Card and Dependent Card/ Certificate issued by the Competent Authority.

Priority IX – Wives of Serving Personnel.

Required Certificate:(Proof in Original)

Original Service Identity Card and Dependent Card/ Certificate issued by the Competent Authority.

f) Persons with Disabilities (PD): 5% of the total seats in each category are reserved for candidates belonging to 'Persons with Disabilities' sub-category in accordance with the provisions of 'The Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act 2016' (PWD ACT). All the candidates who furnish PD certificate from any Government Hospital located in Delhi or Outside Delhi under the provisions of 'The Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act 2016', shall be eligible for claiming reservation on Delhi and outside Delhi seats (based on the location of their qualifying exam).

3.2 Seat Conversion Rules

- a) After exhausting the complete list of registered candidates in PD and CW subcategories, remaining vacant seats in these subcategories will be transferred to respective main category (GEN/SC/ST/OBC/EWS).
- b) After exhausting the complete list of registered SC, ST, OBC and EWS candidates, the vacant seats will be treated as unreserved in the "Spot Round". The conversion of vacant Outside Delhi Region seats to Delhi Region seats and vice versa will be done only in the Spot Round as per the following procedure:
 - If the complete list of registered ST Delhi candidate exhausts, then the remaining vacant seats under this category will be filled from the list of SC Delhi category candidates or vice versa.
 - If the complete list of registered ST, Outside Delhi candidate exhausts, then the remaining vacant seats under this category will be filled from the list of SC, Outside Delhi category candidates or vice versa.
- iii. If the complete list of registered SC/ST, Delhi candidate exhausts, then the remaining vacant seats under this category will be filled by creating equal number of seats in GN, Delhi category.
- iv. If the complete list of registered SC/ST, Outside Delhi candidate exhausts, then the remaining vacant seats under this category will be filled by creating equal number of seats in GN, Outside Delhi category.
- v. If the complete list of registered EWS, Delhi candidate exhausts, then the remaining vacant seats under this category will be filled from the list of GN, Delhi category candidates.
- vi. If the complete list of registered EWS, Outside Delhi candidate exhausts, then the remaining vacant seats under this category will be filled from the list of GN, Outside Delhi category candidates.
- vii. If the complete list of registered OBC, Delhi candidate exhausts, then the remaining vacant seats under this category will be filled from the list of GN, Delhi category candidates.
- viii. If the complete list of registered OBC, Outside Delhi candidate exhausts, then the remaining vacant seats under this category will be filled from the list of GN, Outside Delhi category candidates.
- ix. If the complete list of registered GN, Delhi candidate exhausts, then the remaining vacant seats under this category will filled from the list of GN, Outside Delhi category or vice versa.

3.3 Certificates Required for Reserved Seats at the Time of Document Verification

Candidates applying for any reserved seat (i.e. SC, ST, OBC, EWS, CW, PD) must produce the original certificate(s) (as applicable) as mentioned below at the time of physical verification of documents. However, scanned copy of all these documents must be uploaded at the time of registration and choice filling. Please refer **Chapter 7** for the sample formats.

- (i) Scheduled Caste (SC)/Scheduled Tribe (ST) /Other Backward Class (OB): For admission to a seat reserved for Scheduled Caste/Scheduled Tribe/Other Backward Class Non Creamy Layer (OBC NCL), candidates must produce a certificate, in original, issued from an approved district authority mentioning the Scheduled Caste/ Scheduled Tribe/ Other Backward Class (NCL), to which the candidate belongs to. A list of approved authorities is given below:
 - a. District Magistrate / Additional Magistrate / Deputy Commissioner / Collector / Additional Deputy Commissioner / Deputy Collector / 1st Class Stipendiary Magistrate / City Magistrate (not below the rank of 1st Class Stipendiary Magistrate), Sub-Divisional Magistrate / Taluka Magistrate / Executive Magistrate / Extra Assistant Commissioner.
 - b. Revenue Officer not below the rank of Tehsildar.
 - c. Sub-Divisional Officer of the area where the candidates and/or his/her family normally resides
 - d. Administrator/Secretary to Administration/Development Officer (Lakshdweep& Minicov Islands).

NOTE

- 1. Caste name as mentioned in OBC certificate MUST exactly match with the name of caste included in the list available at:
 - http://revenue.delhi.gov.in/wps/wcm/connect/DoIT_Revenue/revenue/home/downloads/obc+caste+list-1
 - Any mismatch in any form including error in spelling the name of the caste mentioned in the OBC certificate will not be considered as equivalent caste by JAC Delhi.
 - For example, if 'Sunar' caste is spelt as 'SUNAR' in the above mentioned list, then OBC certificates, with caste name spelt as, 'SONAR' or 'SUNAAR' or SONAAR' etc. will not be accepted.
- 2. The candidate seeking admission under reserved categories has to mandatorily produce the caste/category certificate in his/her name at the time of counselling. The certificate in the name of either of the parents (Mother/Father)or any other family member is not acceptable and the candidate will not be entitled even for provisional admission.
- 3. The reservation certificate should be issued from the respective state/region in which the reservation is being claimed, e.g. in case, a candidate claims the seat reserved for the Delhi Region category, he/she has to bring SC / ST / OBC certificate issued by Govt. of NCT of Delhi and should have also passed his/her qualifying examination from a School / College / Institute located in National Capital Territory of Delhi.
- 4. Central certificate or any certificate issued stating applicability for job will not be considered valid for admission.
- 5. OBC (NCL) candidates are required to produce a caste certificate issued after March 31, 2021 from the authorities as mentioned above. However, if the certificate is issued prior to March 31, 2021, it must be accompanied with an additional certificate regarding the present non-creamy layer status of the candidate, issued by the same competent authority. This additional certificate must have reference of his / her already issued original caste certificate.
- 6. Students claiming OBC reservation under Delhi region will be admitted under this category on the submission of a certificate to this effect from the Competent Authority of the Government of NCT of Delhi. Certificate issued by Govt. of India or any state government will not be accepted under any circumstances. A certificate issued by a competent authority of Delhi to an individual on the basis of Caste Certificate of his/her parents from another state will be accepted for claiming a seat under OBC Category IF AND ONLY IF the caste is in the list of notified OBC list by Govt. of NCT of Delhi. Refer to link:
 - http://revenue.delhi.gov.in/wps/wcm/connect/DoIT Revenue/revenue/home/downloads/obc+caste+list-1

(ii) Economically Weaker Section (EWS): Criteria for Income and Assets:

The benefit of reservation under EWS can be availed by **persons who are not covered under the scheme of reservation for SCs, STs and OBCs** upon production of an Income and Asset Certificate issued by a competent authority based upon the following criteria:

Candidates, whose family, has gross annual income below Rs 8.0 lakh (Rupees eight lakh only) are to be identified as belonging to EWS for benefit of reservation under this category. Income shall also include income from all sources i.e. salary, agriculture, business, profession, etc. for the financial year prior to the year of application.

Also, persons whose family owns or possess any of the following assets shall be excluded from being identified as belonging to EWS, irrespective of the family income:-

- i. 5 acres of agricultural land and above;
- ii. Residential flat of 1000 sq. ft. and above;
- iii. Residential plot of 100 sq. yards and above in notified municipalities;
- iv. Residential, plot of 200 sq. yards and above in areas other than the notified municipalities.

The property held by a "Family" in different locations or different places/cities would be clubbed while applying the land or property holding test to determine EWS status.

The term "Family" for this purpose will include the person who seeks benefit of reservation, his/her parents and siblings below the age of 18 years as also his/her spouse and children below the age of 18 years.

The benefit of reservation under EWS can be availed upon production of an Income and Asset Certificate issued by a Competent Authority after March 31, 2021. The Income and Asset Certificate issued 'by any one of the following authorities in the prescribed format as given in Annexure-I shall only be accepted as proof of candidate's claim for 'belonging to EWS: -

- (i) District Magistrate/Additional District Magistrate/ Collector/ Deputy Commissioner/Additional' Deputy Commissioner/ 1st Class Stipendary Magistrate/ Sub-Divisional Magistrate/ Taluka Magistrate / Executive Magistrate/ Extra Assistant Commissioner
- (ii) Chief Presidency Magistrate/Additional Chief Presidency Magistrate/ Presidency Magistrate
- (iii) Revenue Officer not below the rank of Tehsildar and
- (iv) Sub-Divisional Officer or the area where the candidate and/or his family normally resides.
- (iii) **Defence sub-category (CW):** For admission to a seat reserved for **Defence sub-category**, candidate must produce the following certificates (as applicable and as listed above under section 3.1, clause e),in original, at the time of document verification of Defence candidates:
 - a. Entitlement card in original issued by the Record Officer of the Unit/Regiment of Armed Personnel of the Armed Forces in case of Armed Personnel.
 - b. Widows/ Wards/ Wives of the officers and men of Armed forces who died or were disabled on duty (both attributable to military service) must produce a certificate to that effect from the following authorities:
 - i) Secretary, KendriyaSainik Board.
 - ii) Secretary, Rajya/ZilaSainik Board.
 - iii) Officer-in-Charge, Record Office.
 - c. Medical records in original.
 - d. Special Pension Order and Passbook indicating special pension.
 - e. Gallantry Award Certificate.
 - f. Original ex-servicemen Identity Card/Discharge Book/ Pension Payment Order.
 - g. Dependency card issued by any of above mentioned authority in order to relate the relationship of the candidate with the Defence personnel.
 - h. Original Service Identity Card.
 - i. A certificate from the respective C.O. Unit in respect of serving personnel.

NOTE.

A statement to the effect that 'the death/disability is attributed to military service' is required to be included in the certificate for Priority III & IV.

THE FINAL PRIORITY WILL BE SUBJECT TO SCRUTINY BY PANEL OF DEFENCE EXPERTS AT THE TIME OF DOCUMENT VERIFICATION.

- (iv) **Persons with Disabilities (PD) sub-category:** For admission to seat reserved for persons with Disabilities (PD) sub-category, the candidate must produce the following certificates in original at the time of document verification for PD candidates:
 - a. A certificate of physical disability issued by the Competent Authority as per the provision of the Persons with Disabilities Act 2016 in the prescribed format as given under the Act.
 - b. The Candidate with benchmark disabilities shall produce the medical certificate issued by the Govt. Hospitals duly notified by the Govt. of NCT of Delhi/Other State government and further duly

- verified by the Chief Medical Officer of the concerned Government Hospital.
- c. A certificate, duly recommended by any of the Vocational Rehabilitation Centres for the handicapped, including Vocational Rehabilitation Centre for the handicapped, 9-11 VikasMarg, Karkarduma, Delhi 110092, established by the Ministry of Labour and Employment.

3.4 University wise seat distribution

The following coding scheme has been employed to identify a particular seat throughout this brochure and counseling.

REGION, CATEGORY and SUB-CATEGORY CODES

Code Format: CCSSR

Category	Code(CC)
General	GN
Scheduled Tribe	ST
Scheduled Caste	SC
Other Backward Classes	OB
Economically Weaker Section	EW

Sub-Category	Code(SS)
No Subcategory	GN
Persons with Disabilities	PD
Defence	CW

Region	Code(R)	
Delhi	D	
Outside Delhi	0	

For example category code **SCPDO** means category is **SC** (Scheduled Caste), subcategory **PD** (Person with Disabilities) and **O** (Outside Delhi region).

3.4.1 Seat Matrix for B.Arch program at Indira Gandhi Delhi Technical University for Women (IGDTUW)

Category	Code	Number of Seats	Region
GEN	GNGND	15	Delhi Region
	GNPDD	1	42
	GNCWD	1	
EWS	EWGND	4	
100	EWPDD	0	
	EWCWD	0	
OBC	OBGND	11	
	OBPDD	0	
	OBCWD	1	
SC	SCGND	5	
- 1	SCPDD	1	
	SCCWD	0	
ST	STGND	3	
	STPDD	0	
	STCWD	0	
GEN	GNGNO	3	Outside Delhi
	GNPDO	0	Region -08
- / 15 21	GNCWO	0	
EWS	EWGNO	1	
	EWPDO	0	
	EWCWO	0	
OBC	OBGNO	2	
	OBPDO	0	
	OBCWO	0	
SC	SCGNO	1	
	SCPDO	0	
	SCCWO	0	
ST	STGNO	1	
	STPDO	0	
	STCWO	0	
	TOTAL SEATS	50	

3.4.2 Seat Matrix for B.Arch. program at NetajiSubhas University of Technology (West Campus)
(NSUT West Campus)

Category	Code	nd Planning, NSUT West Number of Seats	Region
GEN	GNGND	12	Delhi Region-34
	GNCWD	1	
	GNPDD	1	
EWS	EWGND	3	
	EWCWD	0	
	EWPDD	0	
SC	SCGND	4	
	SCPWD	0	
	SCPDD	1	
ST	STGND	3	
	STCWD	0	Warran erana
2 15 1	STPDD	0	
OBC	OBGND	8	
	OBCWD	1	
	OBPDD	0	e e garlinge
GEN	GNGNO	2	Outside Delhi
LYN. II	GNCWO	0	Region-06
	GNPDO	0	
EWS	EWGNO	1	
	EWCWO	0	
	EWPDO	0	
SC	SCGNO	1	
	SCCWO	0	
	SCPDO	0	
ST	STGNO	0	
	STCWO	0	V I I I I I I I I
	STPDO	0	
OBC	OBGNO	2	
	OBCWO	0	
	OBPDO	0	
	TOTAL	40	

Chapter 4 Online Registration Procedure

4.1 Online registration and counseling fee payment

All candidates desirous of seeking admission to the B.Arch. program at IGDTUW are required to visit website www.jacdelhi.nic.in and complete registration form, pay a non-refundable registration-cum-counseling fee of Rs 750/- (plus transactions charges as applicable)

NOTE: ONLINE REGISTRATION IS ALLOWED AS PER COUNSELING SCHEDULE ONLY.

- i) The candidate will initially authenticate herself/himself by entering following details of NATA application:
 - NATA 2021 Application Number
 - Name (as per NATA score card)
 - Date of Birth (as per NATA score card)

If entered details match with NATA 2021 data, candidate will have to enter her email ID and mobile number. A verification code will be sent to candidate's mobile and email ID for verification. After verification of email ID/mobile, candidate can create her/his password. NATA application number will be the "User ID" for the candidate. Candidate shall choose a suitably strong "Password" for subsequent logins to this counseling website. Also, she/he shall choose a security question which shall be used to retrieve the password in case she forgets password. Candidates must ensure that Mobile Number and Email Address provided by them must be valid and should belong to the candidate or his/her immediate family members. These will be used by JAC DelhiB.Arch admission committee for all future communications with the candidate.

- ii) It is in the interest of candidate to remember her Password and keep it highly confidential, to avoid misuse by other candidate, for which university shall not be held responsible, in any manner.
- iii) After successful authentication and verification of email ID/mobile, candidate needs to complete JAC Delhi application form in steps.
- iv) Candidate must ensure that the BANK ACCOUNT details filled by him/her at the time of registration must be valid and should BELONG TO THE CANDIDATE OR HIS/HER IMMEDIATE FAMILY MEMBERS. It may be noted that refunds (if any) by JAC Delhi, will be made in this account only irrespective of the account through which the online payment was made by the candidate.
- v) On completion of application form, candidate needs to upload all relevant documents as per his/her category/sub-category. Medical certificate (format in section 7.2) can be submitted at the time of joining the university/institute.
- vi) Candidates will be asked to upload following documents at the time of registration
 - a. Recent passport size color photograph.
 - b. NATA 2021 Score Card
 - c. Marks sheet of the qualifying examination, i.e. Class XII or equivalent
 - d. High School or equivalent examination (i.e. Class X) certificate as a proof of Date of Birth.
 - e. Reserved category / sub-category Certificates.
 - f. For PD sub-category:
 - A certificate of physical disability issued by the Competent Authority as per the provision of the Persons with Disabilities Act 2016 in the prescribed format as given under the Act.
 - ii. The Candidate with benchmark disabilities shall produce the medical certificate issued by the Govt. Hospitals duly notified by the Govt. of NCT of Delhi/Other State government and further duly verified by the Chief Medical Officer of the concerned Government Hospital.
 - iii. A certificate, duly recommended by any of the Vocational Rehabilitation Centres for the handicapped, including Vocational Rehabilitation Centre for the handicapped, 9-11 Vikas Marg, Karkarduma, Delhi 110092, established by the Ministry of Labour and Employment.
 - g. For Defence (CW) sub-category, candidate needs to submit all the documents/certificates specified corresponding to the priority applicable to her, combined in a single pdf file

- vii) Once application form is complete in all respect and all the required documents have been uploaded, candidate needs to confirm his/her registration form. The candidate will not be permitted to edit/change details filled in the registration form once the candidate confirms registration form. If candidate leaves the form incomplete, he/she can continue filling application form
- viii) Once the application form is completed and confirmed by the candidate, he/she will have to pay a non-refundable registration-cum-counseling fee of Rs. 750/-. If amount is deducted from the candidate's bank / card account but does not reflect in candidate login or transaction failed, amount will be refunded to the same bank / card account automatically by the payment system.
- ix) If payment fails, the fee should be paid again for registration without waiting for the refund. The candidate may inform admission committee by sending an email topayments.jacdelhi@gmail.comproviding the candidate's details (NATA Application Number, Name, Mobile Number, Date and Time of Transaction).
- x) Candidates need to fill the choices for seat allotment, refer section 4.2
- xi) Candidate has to take the printout of the registration form signed by Guardian / Parents and Self, which has to be submitted at the time of admission./reporting in the university.

Please Note:

- i) After successful registration and fee payment, candidates are required to visit the website www.jacdelhi.nic.in again and fill choices for university for seat allotment.
- ii) After completing the application form successfully if candidate does not pay the registration-cum-counseling fee of Rs. 750/-, he/she will not be considered for any seat allotment in any round of the counseling.
- iii) Registration fee can also be paid in cash by selecting "payment in cash/payment at SBI branch" during payment mode selection on payment page opened while clicking on payment option. After selection of this payment option, candidate must fill up the mobile number and email ID and then print a challan generated by payment system. Candidate must deposit the fee in cash using printed challan at any branch of SBI.
- iv) No other mode of payment will be accepted for submission of registration-cum-counseling fee.

4.2 Choice Filling, New Registration in Subsequent Rounds and Change of Choices

a. Online Choice Filling:

- i) Having completed the registration process and paid the counseling fee, the candidate shall login the website <u>www.jacdelhi.nic.in</u> using NATA 2021 Application Number as login ID and a password created during registration process.
- ii) Choice filling option will be available in candidate login. As per the eligibility of the candidate, available seat information relating to University and Program will be displayed. Candidate can select choices one by one from list of available choices and can add it to her preference of choices. Preference of choices can be rearranged by moving a filled choice up/down in the preference list. Candidate can also remove a filled choice from her preference list.
- iii) The registered candidates are required to see the fee structures of the university before filling the choices.
- iv) Editing of university choices are permitted during entire duration of registration window. All the registered candidates can edit their filled choices whenever new registrations are permitted in subsequent rounds.
- v) Preference of choices will be locked automatically once registration period is over.
- vi) Candidate has to take the printout of the filled choices once registration is closed.
- b. Login to the Candidate's Account through link available on www.jacdelhi.nic.in After successful login, candidate's homepage is opened and following options are displayed:
 - i) Registration Details: Registration Detail is important for seat allotment and should be filled very carefully.
 - ii) Edit Registration: Any mistake can be corrected in the above through "Edit Registration" option only if the candidate has not confirmed her registration.
 - iii) Fill Choices of University: As per the eligibility of the candidate, available seat information relating to University and Program will be displayed. Only female candidates can choose bothIGDTUW and NSUT as choice of University.

- iv) Display Filled Choices: Choices entered by the candidate will be displayed so that she can check the already entered information. Female candidates are advised to fill both university choices to increase her probability of early seat allotment. Once admitted, her seat may get upgraded during subsequent round of counseling depending upon the availability of vacant seats.
- v) Provisional Seat Allotment Letter: A provisional seat allotment letter can be downloaded after declaration of seat allotment result of a round. This letter clearly indicates university and category/subcategory of allotted seat.
- vi) Admission Confirmation Status: If seat is allotted to the candidate, and admission fee is paid by the candidate, admission committee will verify the uploaded documents and confirm the admission. Status of confirmation of admission will be made available in 'candidate login' of the candidate...
- vii) Links to pay various fee: Links for all fee payments including Registration fee, Admission fee payment, spot round fee payment, and balance fee payments are made available to the candidates as per counseling schedule.
- viii) Provisional Admission Letter: Once admission committee confirms the admission of the candidate, candidate can download his/her provisional admission letter.

c. Choice Locking & Printing of Locked Choices

- i) Choices of university filled by candidates will be locked automatically for that particular round after the registration period is over. However, a candidate can change her choices during specified windows after every round as specified in the counseling schedule.
- ii) Candidates have to take the print out of the filled choices only after closing of choice filling
- d. New Registration: New registrations will be allowed after completion of each round (Round 1 to Round 2) strictly as specified in the counseling schedule. A candidate, who wants to register afresh for JAC Delhi 2021- B.Arch program, must follow the instruction mentioned in Section 4.1 & 4.2 A candidate registering in later rounds will not hold any right to claim the seats allotted to other candidate, who had participated in earlier rounds. The allotment of a seat, to the newly registered candidate, will be done purely upon the Merit Rank List and the availability of seats in subsequent rounds.
- e. Change of Preferences of Choices of University: The choices of university initially filled by the candidate during the registration will remain valid throughout the counseling process unless altered/changed by the candidate during the subsequent rounds.

Note: JAC Delhi 2021 will not be held responsible for a candidate's lack of awareness of the schedule for change of preference of choices of university.

4.3 Allotment of Seat and Result Declaration

- a. Allotment of seat: After completion of choice filling period, the so filled choices of all registered candidates will be processed for allotment of seats as per Merit Rank List (Merit Criterion explained in section 2.6)
- b. Result Declaration: Result of seat allotment in various rounds will be declared as per the Counseling Schedule. The selected candidate can view/print the provisional seat allotment letter after logging into his/her account on the website www.jacdelhi.nic.in.

4.4 Online reporting

a. Online Reporting and Admission Fee payment: A candidate, who is allotted a seat in a particular round, is required to pay the amount of admission fee of Rs.1,32,000/- (Rupees One Lac Thirty Two Thousand only) as per the specified schedule through ONLINE FEE PAYMENT GATEWAY of JAC Delhi 2021. A candidate can initiate the admission fee payment process, for Rs 1,32,000/- (Rupees One Lac Thirty Two Thousand only), after logging into his/her account on JAC website www.jacdelhi.nic.in. Fee payment link will be made available in candidate login immediately after declaration of seat allotment results of a round.

NOTE:

<u>Candidates should note that admission fee will not be accepted in the form of Demand Draft</u>
<u>/Cheques/ Cash under any circumstances.</u> Candidates are required to pay the admission fee strictly as per the counseling schedule and keep one copy of fee receipt printout for their record.

- b. Admission committee will verify all uploaded documents and fee payments for all candidates, who are allotted a seat in a particular round. If all documents are verified successfully and fee payment is successful, admission will be confirmed by the admission committee. Such candidates can see the status of document verification in their login and print the provision admission letter. Once provisional admission letter is available in 'candidate login', admission process is complete for such candidates.
- c. If admission committee finds some deficiency/deficiencies in uploaded documents and the seat allotted is not confirmed by the admission committee, a deficiency will be created by admission committee and the status will be made available in 'candidate login'. Such candidate can view the status of their admission in his/her login as per counselling schedule. They can contact helpdesk.barch.jacdelhi@gmail.com or helplines of allotted university for further clarification on deficiencies mentioned by the admission committee. The candidate may also report physically to allotted institute as per date and time mentioned in counselling schedule for any clarification on deficiencies. If candidate produces new/additional documents related to the deficiencies pointed out, and uploads the same on JAC Delhi portal as per specified schedule, the admission committee can confirm his/her admission if documents are found to be in order.
- d. In any case, if admission is not confirmed by admission committee due to some deficiencies in documents, candidate can be considered for seat allotment in subsequent round with changed credentials for available seats in subsequent rounds. (e.g. if candidate belongs to OBC category, and her certificate is not valid as per JAC Delhi requirements, she can be made eligible for next round of counseling as GENERAL category candidate.). In case the candidate is not allotted any seat prior to the spot round (as specified in the counseling schedule), the admission fee paid by such candidates shall be refunded.
- e. Admission of a candidate is purely provisional and is subject to verification of original documents after the physical reporting of the candidate at the respective University / Institute.

4.5 Freezing/ Upgradation

Freezing: In case, a candidate desires to continue in the University allotted to him/ her at the time of admission or during subsequent upgradation (i.e. does not want herself to be considered for upgradation to her higher preference University in subsequent rounds of counseling), then she may submit online freezing request through JAC Delhi portal using her login. Admission will be 'freezed' only as per the schedule specified in the counseling schedule.

UNIVERSITY ONCE FREEZED CANNOT BE REVERTED AND WILL BE TREATED AS FINAL AND ONLY ADMITTED AND 'NON-FREEZED' CANDIDATES WILL BE CONSIDERED FOR UPGRADATION DURING SUBSEQUENT ROUNDS OF COUNSELLING

University Upgradation: If the currently allotted seat is not the first choice of a candidate, such candidates may be allotted a seat from the more preferred choices of the candidate during allotment process of subsequent rounds.

- a) A candidate, who has been admitted in an university other than her first choice, will automatically be upgraded (depending upon the availability of vacant seats), as per her Merit Rank List to an University of her higher preference during seat allotment of subsequent rounds.
- b) A candidate, who has already been admitted and gets upgraded in next round of counseling, should take printout of new seat allotment letter for their record.

4.6 General Instructions

- a. All candidates, who have not been allotted any seat until Second Round but are willing to participate in the Spot Round of counseling, are required to refer to Section 5.4, 5.5 for details.
- b. The detailed instructions about the online counseling shall be available on the website www.jacdelhi.nic.in. Candidates are advised to go through the details thoroughly at this site before registration.

- c. Intimation to Candidates: A candidate will be intimated via SMS/Email on their registered mobile number and email address in the following cases:
 - i. When a candidate's registration is confirmed
 - ii. When a seat is allotted to a candidate
 - iii. When a candidate deposits admission fee
 - iv. When admission is confirmed by the admission committee
 - v. When deficiency is generated by the admission committee
 - vi.When a candidate's seat is upgraded/retained during subsequent rounds
 - vii. When a candidate freezes a seat.
 - viii. When a candidate withdraws a seat.

Disclaimer: JAC Delhi 2021 will not be responsible for any sort of delay/failure of receiving of SMS or email due to any issues. So, it is in the interest of the candidates to follow the counseling schedule and check their status by login into their accounts regularly.

NOTE: Candidates are advised to visit JAC DELHI website (www.jacdelhi.nic.in) regularly for details.

- ❖ A candidate who is offered a seat under reserved category / sub-category in any round of seat allotment and fails to produce appropriate document in support, her allotted seat will be cancelled and she shall be considered for allotment in GENERAL category in subsequent rounds, subject to eligibility and availability of vacant seats.
- ❖ It is the sole responsibility of the candidate to prove his/her eligibility for claiming reservation under any of the reserved categories. The candidates under SC/ST/OBC/EWS categories and CW/PD subcategories will be required to upload the certificate(s) of the respective reserved category/subcategory issued by the competent authority (as listed in Section 3.3) at the time of registration.
- ❖ If the certificate for reserved category candidate is not found to be in order, no benefit of the reservation will be given and the candidate shall be considered for allotment in GENERAL category in subsequent rounds, as per the eligibility of the candidate and availability of seats. If such candidate is able to produce his/her category certificates in further rounds, he/she will be considered for that category and will be allotted a fresh seat as per his/her merit and the vacancies available in that and subsequent rounds only.

Chapter 5 Online Counseling Procedure

5.1 Seat Allotment - General Rules

During this step, the applications submitted by the candidates will be processed centrally and seats will be allotted in the order of MERIT RANK as explained in section 2.6 on the basis of the locked choice of university. The allotment result will be available on the website www.jacdelhi.nic.in.

5.2 Online Counseling - Round One

Online counseling will be done in 2 rounds of counselling Round 1 and Round 2. Fresh Registration and Choice Editing/Filling will be available only in Rounds 1 to Round 2 and Spot Round.

Round 1

- i) The choices of university filled by the candidates during ONLINE registration will be processed centrally and the institute-wise cutoffs along with the seat allotment result will be made available on the JAC Delhi website. As the choices of university filled by the candidates can be changed at the beginning of every round (if not freezed), hence the candidates are requested to fill/change their choices carefully..
- ii) All candidates who are provisionally allotted a seat in any round of counseling are required to pay the admission fee of Rs 1,32,000/- using a fee payment link available in their login.
- iii) Admission committee will verify the documents and check status of admission fee payment as per schedule mentioned for each round. If all the uploaded documents are as per requirement and the admission fee has been paid by the candidate, his/her admission will be confirmed by admission committee and status will be made available to the candidate. Such candidates can download the Provisional Admission Letter from JAC Delhi website.
- iv) Freezing: In case, a candidate whose admission is confirmed and who has downloaded the provisional admission letter, desires to continue in the university allotted to him/her at the time of admission or during subsequent upgradation (i.e. incase female candidate does not want herself to be considered for upgradation to her higher preference university in subsequent rounds of counseling), then she must submit online freezing request through JAC Delhi portal using their login. University freezing requests can be submitted only after the admission is confirmed by the admission committee till last date mentioned in counseling schedule of each round.

UNIVERSITY ONCE FREEZED CANNOT BE REVERTED AND WILL BE TREATED AS FINAL. ONLY THOSE ADMITTED CANDIDATES WHO HAVE NOT FREEZED THEIR ALLOTTED SEATS (KEPT THEIR SEATS ON 'FLOAT' OPTION) WILL BE CONSIDERED FOR UPGARDATION DURING SUBSEQUENT ROUNDS OF COUNSELLING

It must be noted that once a university is freezed by the candidate using the university Freezing Option", the candidate will not be allowed to change her filled choices in any of the subsequent roundof counseling and will not be considered for university upgradation

- v) In case, any deficiency/deficiencies is found in the uploaded documents, or the academic fee has not been paid, the admission of candidates will be cancelled after the completion of that round. Information about the deficiencies will be made available to the candidate on or before the specified date and time during each round of admission. If a candidate can clear the deficiencies before the end of that round, his/her admission will be confirmed. To clear the deficiency, candidates can upload new documents/additional documents/pay the admission fee as asked by admission committee or he/she can visit the institute where seat is allotted before end of a round.
- vi) For candidates, whose admissions are not confirmed due to some deficiencies, seat allotted to the candidate will be cancelled. Such candidates may be considered in next round of counselling with changed credentials (e.g. if OBC certificate is not valid, category may be changed from OBC to GENERAL).
- vii) In case the admission of a candidate who has paid the admission fee of Rs 1,32,000/- is not confirmed because of some deficiencies/inconsistencies in their documents, the admission fee paid by them will be refunded within 10 days after the last date of withdrawal (refer counseling schedule).

- viii) Failing to pay the admission fee against allotted seat, his/her allotted seat will stand automatically cancelled and the candidate will not be considered for subsequent ONLINE rounds of seat allotment upto Round 4. However, such candidates are eligible for Spot Round counselling provided they pay Spot Round participation fee.
- ix) Based on the number of candidates completing the document verification and number of withdrawals made by admitted candidates, the vacant seats available thereafter will be used for seat allotment in second round of counseling.

5.3 Second Round of Counseling

- i) Fresh candidates can also register in this round as per the counseling schedule.
- ii) All female admitted candidates who have not freezed their allotted university in the previous round, shall be allowed to change their **preference of choices**. In order to change her choices of university, a candidate MUST visit JAC Delhi website and change their preferences using the candidate login as per counseling schedule.
- iii) The following types of candidates are eligible for seat allotment/upgradation:
 - a) Type I: New candidates who have registered afresh in second round and all registered candidates who were not allotted any seat in the first round of seat allotment.
 - b) Type-II: All candidates who were allotted a seat in the first round of counseling, paid their prescribed admission fee as required, also got their documents verified successfully and didn't freeze their seat.
 - c) Type-III: All candidates who were allotted a seat in the first round of counseling, paid their admission fee as required but their admissions were not confirmed by admission committee due to some deficiencies in their documents and admission committee permitted them to participate in next round of counseling with changed category/subcategory/region.
- iv) Candidates of Type I, who get an allotment in this round will have to pay the admission fee (refer Chapter 6 for details) as per the counseling schedule (available on the website www.jacdelhi.nic.in)
 - For a candidate failing to pay the admission fee as per the counseling schedule, his/her allotted seat will stand automatically cancelled and the candidate will not be considered for subsequent ONLINE rounds of seat allotment. However, such candidates are eligible for Spot Round, in case they choose to pay the Spot Round participation Fee.
- v) Candidates of Type II-Female candidates may either be allotted a seat of higher preference choiceor their previously allotted seat will remain unchanged. They can, if they wish, freeze their allotted seat or wait for upgradation in subsequent round(s). No upgradation for male candidates.
- vi) Candidates of Type-III will participate in second round of seat allotments with changed category/subcategory/region like Type-I candidates but if fresh seat allotment is done, they need not pay the admission fee if they have paid it in first round.
- vii) In case, a candidate, who has been admitted/upgraded in this round, desires to continue in the seat allotted (i.e. she does not want to be considered for upgradation to her higher preferences in subsequent rounds of counseling), then she may submit an online freezing request through JAC website using candidate's login on the day mentioned in counseling schedule (after confirmation of admission).

5.4 Upgradation or Sliding Only Round before Spot round

This upgradation or sliding only round will be run after completion of the 2nd round. There will be upgradation of admitted candidates within the base cut-off rank in each category and region.

For upgradation, the base cut off ranks will be the maximum rank of last round of counseling cut-off of merit rank for NSUT in each category & region.

Any admitted candidate whose rank is higher than the base cut off rank will not be eligible for upgradation in that particular institute, category and region.

5.5 Spot Round (subject to availability of seats)

- i) The SPOT ROUND of counseling will be conducted for the vacant seats, available if any, after upgradation of admitted candidates (as described in 5.4).
- ii) Fresh Registration will be allowed in spot round.
- iii) Candidate will need to submit a participation fee of Rs.5000/- if he/she wants to participate in spot round of counseling. This participation fee will be adjusted in provisional admission fee, if a seat is accepted by the candidate. In case a candidate is allotted a seat during spot round and the candidate doesn't accept the seat, then the participation fee for spot round, submitted by the candidate, shall be forfeited.
- iv) Candidate will have to submit online undertaking /willingness for participation in Spot Round through JAC Delhi 2021 website.
- v) Participating candidate needs to report **in person** (No authorized representative are allowed to participate) at the Spot Round venue as per spot round schedule and mark his/her attendance.
- vi) The detailed instruction for conduct of Spot Round, rules for participation, etc will be made available on JAC website after completion of Round 2 of B.Arch Counseling.
- vii) In case of withdrawal, no fees would be refunded to candidates seeking admission during spot round.

5.6 Reporting at the Final Allotted University / Institute

All provisionally admitted candidates are required to visit the website of allotted university for physical verification of original documents/commencement of classes and payment of balance fee (if any). Admitted candidates need to pay the balance fee at the final allotted University AS PER FEE PAYMENT SCHEDULE available on respective university website, failing which, the admission of the candidate automatically stands cancelled *ipso facto*.

Note: The decision of the B.Arch Admission Committee/ Joint Admission Counselling 2021 regarding the eligibility/admission of any applicant shall be final. All the candidates claiming reservation under various categories / sub-categories must have been issued respective category/sub-category certificate, on or before the date of registration.

Chapter 6 Fee Structure

The admitted candidates are required to pay academic/admission fees as given below as per the schedule and procedure notified:

University / Institute	Total Fee to be paid for 1st Year	Fees to be paid at the time of Admission	Balance fees to be paid At respective University
IGDTUW	B. Arch.: Rs. 1,25,000/- + one time refundable Security Deposit i.e. Rs.5000/- and One Time Non-Refundable Alumni Fee i.e. Rs. 2,000/- for	Rs. 1,32, 000/-	NIL
NSUT- West Campus	B.Arch.: Rs. 2,19,000/-	Rs. 1,32, 000/-	Rs. 87,000/-

Hostel and Mess Fee, if applicable is required to be paid separately

Fee for IGDTUW for remaining four years of B. Arch. Program will be as follows:

Program	Year	Fees
Bachelor of Architecture	II	Rs. 1,37,000/
	III	Rs. 1,50,000/-
	IV	Rs. 1,64,000/-
	V	Rs. 1,78,000/-

Fee for NSUT-West Campus Jaffarpur for remaining four years of B. Arch. Program will be as follows:

Program	Year	Fees Fees
Bachelor of Architecture	II	Rs. 2,29,000/
	III	Rs. 2,40,000/-
	IV	Rs. 2,51,000/-
	V	Rs. 2,62,000/-

NOTE

- Delhi Government has launched an attractive Higher Education Guarantee Scheme. For details please visit Delhi government site.
- Hostel and mess fee have to be paid separately. Please refer to IGDTUW/NSUT website for details.

6.1 Procedure to pay Admission Fee at the time of online counseling

All candidates, who are provisionally allotted a seat first time in any of Round 1 to Round 2 of counseling are required to pay the admission fee of Rs. 1,32,000/- using a fee payment link available in their login. Candidates who are provisionally allotted a seat in Spot Round of counseling are required to pay an admission fee of Rs.1,27,000/-.

Following payment modes are available:

(i) By Credit Card / Internet Banking through Payment Gateway

Candidates can pay their initial admission fee of Rs.1,32,000/-as per their seat allotment round using Payment Gateway facility accessible on the JAC website in the candidate's login account. Candidates may kindly note that while making the payment, in case the transaction fails or takes time to reflect, then they can write to the JAC payments helpdesk email payments.jacdelhi@gmail.com

(ii) By Cash at any branch of SBI using SBI Collect e-Challan

Alternatively, candidates may pay their initial admission fee of Rs.1,32,000/- as per their seat allotment round (plus additional bank charges) through cash payment at any branch of State Bank of India using the SBI e-Challan.

- > Only those Candidates, who pay their initial admission fee and complete the document verification process successfully, will be considered as <u>SUCCESSFULLY ADMITTED CANDIDATES</u>.
- ➤ Important Note: Candidates, when they get seat allotment for the first time (in any round) and do not pay their admission fee, will forfeit their seat allotment automatically and will not be considered for subsequent rounds of that phase of Online Counseling. IT IS THUS MANDATORY FOR THE CANDIDATES TO PAY THE ADMISSION FEE TO BE CONSIDERED FOR THE SUBSEQUENT ROUNDS OF ONLINE COUNSELLING.

6.2 Procedure to Pay Balance Admission Fee

NSUTshall notify separate schedule for payment of balance admission fee (if any as mentioned in the fee structure) at its website. The admitted candidates are thus advised to visit website of NSUT for details of balance fee payment.

6.3 Withdrawal of Allotted Seat and Refund of Fees

- (i) An admitted candidate can withdraw his/her admission during the counseling period (as specified in the counseling schedule) by submitting online request through JAC Delhi portal on or before last date of withdrawal mentioned in counseling schedule.
- (ii) If the candidate withdraws his/her admission on or before the last date of withdrawal as mentioned in the counseling schedule, his/her admission fee (Rs. 1,32,000/-) will be refunded after deducting Rs.1000/-(Rupees One thousand only) as processing charge.
- (iii) Fee refunds for all withdrawals will be processed within 10 days after last date of withdrawal.
- (iv) The academic/admission fee deposited by the admitted candidates will be forfeited, if he/she withdraws after the last date of withdrawal as mentioned in the Counseling Schedule.
- (v) Candidates admitted in both B.Arch and B.Tech Program, should WITHDRAW FROM EITHER ONE OF THE PROGRAM on or before the Last Date of Withdrawal from B.Arch. Program failing which the candidate will be treated admitted in B.Tech. Program and his/her admission for the B.Arch. Program shall be cancelled.

Chapter 7 Certificates and Formats

The formats of some of the required certificates are printed below for the guidance for the candidates. Separate certificates bearing the same data as specified in these sample formats are also acceptable. Original certificates, as prescribed, should be signed by the authorities mentioned therein, under the legible seal of office.

7.1 Certificate in Respect of DefenceCategory(CW)

CERTIFICATE FOR AVAILING ADMISSION AGAINST DEFENCE QUOTA OFFICE OF THE ZILA/RAJYA SAINIK BOARD

	Son/daughter of
resident of	the
above named officer/ JCO / OR pertains to the category mark	
(a) Killed in Action ondur	ring
(b) Disabled in Action on and boarded out fi	rom service on during
(c) Died in peace time on	with death attributable to military service
(d) Disabled in peace time and boarded out from service with	disability attributable military service
(e) Gallantry Award Winner (and any service.
(f) Ex-Serviceman.	
(g) Wives of:	
 i. defence personnel disabled in action and boarded Military Services in action. ii. defence personnel disabled in service and boarded 	out with disability attributeble to military carries
iii ex-Servicemen and serving personnal who are in	out with disability attributable to miniary service.
iii. ex-Servicemen and serving personnel who are in r(h) Wards of Serving Personnel	eccipt of Gallantry Awards.
(i) Wives of Serving Personnel	
(1) Wives of Serving Personner	
(Categoryabove)	
Mr (Migg	
Mr./Missson/daughter Admission in IGDTUW or NSUT against	of the above named officer/JCO/OR is eligible for the Defence quota under priority
His/her Ex-Serviceman Widow Identity Card No. is DLH-01.	
NO/	RSB SECRETARY
(Round stamp of Office)	(Zila/RaiyaSainik Roard)

7.2 Medical Fitness Certificate

(To be signed by a registered medical practitioner holding a Medical Degree)

(TO BE SUBMITTED AT THE TIME OF ADMISSION)

Space for Photograph

I certify that I have carefully examined	d Mr./Ms.*	Son/daughter of
Shri	whose signature is given below.	Based on the examination, I
certify that he/she is in good mental and physi-	ical health and is free from any physic	cal defects which may interfere
with his/her studies including the active outdoo	or duties required of a professional.	
Marks of Identification		
Signature of the Candidate		
Place:		
Date:		
		Medical Officer with seal and tion number

* Strike whichever is not applicable.

Certificate for Differently Abled Person (PD) 7.3

To be issued by Medical Board from Government Hospital

Name of the candidate: Mr./Ms.*		
Father's Name:		
Permanent Address:		Space for Photograph
Percentage loss of earning capacity (
Whether the candidate is otherwise satisfactorily:	able to carry on the studies and p	perform the duties of an engineer/architect
Name of the disease causing handica	ap:	
Whether handicap is temporary or pe	ermanent:	
Whether handicap is progressive or r	non-progressive:	
The candidate is FIT / UNFIT to pur	sue the Engineering/Architecture stu	ıdies.
(*Strike out whichever is not applica	ible)	
Doctor	Doctor	ChiefMedical Officer
Date:	Seal	of Office
	ocar (

NOTE:
The medical board must have three members.

1. Candidate having temporary or progressive handicap will not be considered against these seats.

Form-I Disability Certificate

(In cases of amputation or complete permanent paralysis of limbs and in cases of blindness)
(NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE MEDICAL AUTHORITY ISSUING THE CERTIFICATE)

Recent PP size Attested Photograph (Showing face only) of the person with disability

son/wife/daughter of Shri		Date of Birth
(DD/MM/YY)	Age years, male/female	Registration
No	Permanent resident of House No	Ward/Village/
Street	Post Office	District
	State	, whose
photograph is affixed above, and an	n satisfied that:	
a. locomotor disability b. blindness (Please tick as applicable) 2. the diagnosis in his/her case is _		nercent (in words
1. he/she is a case of: a. locomotor disability b. blindness (Please tick as applicable) 2. the diagnosis in his/her case is 3. He/ She has 9.		
 he/she is a case of: a. locomotor disability b. blindness (Please tick as applicable) the diagnosis in his/her case is He/ She has permanent physical impairment guidelines (to be specified). 	% (in figure)	

(Signature and Seal of Authorised Signatory of notified Medical Authority)

Form II Disability Certificate

(In cases of multiple disabilities) (NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE MEDICAL AUTHORITY ISSUING THE CERTIFICATE)

Recent PP size
Attested
Photograph
(Showing face
only) of the
person with
disability

Certificate No			Date:	
	at I have carefully examined Shr			
	son/ whe/daughter of Shri_	500 H. J		
	Ward/Vill Post C	lage/Street Office		District

1. He/she is a Case of **Multiple Disability**. His/her extent of permanent physical impairment/ disability has been evaluated as per guidelines (to be specified) for the disabilities ticked below, and shown against the relevant disability in the table below:

S. No.	Disability	Affected Part of Body	Diagnosis	Permanent physical impairment/mental disability (in %)
1	Locomotor disability	@		
2	Low vision	# -		
3	Blindness	Both Eyes		
4	Hearing impairment	£		
5	Mental retardation	X		
6	Mental-illness	X		

@- e.g. Left/Right/both arms/legs

- e.g. Single eye/both eyes £ -

e.g. Left/Right/both ears

In the light of the above, his/specified), is as follows:	her overall permanent p	hysical impairment as per guidelines (to be
In figures:	percent	
In words:		percent
The above condition is progressi	ive/ non-progressive/ like	ely to improve/ not likely to improve.
Reassessment of disability is:		
a not necessary		
b. is recommended/aftertill (DD/MM/YY)		onths, and therefore this certificate shall be va
The applicant has submitted the		roof of residence:
Nature of Document	Date of Issue	Details of authority issuing certificate
Signature and seal of the Medica	al Authority:	
Name and Seal of Member N	iame of Seal of Member	Name and Seal of the Chairperson
Signature/Thumb impression of the person in whose favour disability certificate is issued		

Disability Certificate (In cases other than those mentioned in Forms I and II) (NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE MEDICAL AUTHORITY ISSUING THE CERTIFICATE)

Recent PP size
Attested
Photograph
(Showing face
only) of the
person with

Certificate No		_Date:	
This is to certify that I have careful	ly examined Shri/Smt./Kum		
son/wife/da	ughter of Shri		
Date of Birth (DI			
male/female			
Permanent resident of House No			
	Post Office		District
	State		, whose

 His/her extent of percentage of physical impairment/disability has been evaluated as per guidelines (to be specified) and is shown against the relevant disability in the table below:

S. No.	Disability	Affected Part of Body	Diagnosis	Permanent physical impairment/mental disability (in %)
1	Locomotor disability	@		
2	Low vision	#		
3	Blindness	Both Eyes		
4	Hearing impairment	£		
5	Mental retardation	X		
6	Mental-illness	X		

(Please strike out the disabilities which are not applicable.)

@- e.g. Left/Right/both arms/legs

- e.g. Single eye/both eyes

£- e.g. Left/Right/both ears

- 2. The above condition is progressive/ non-progressive/ likely to improve/ notlikely to improve.
- 3. Reassessment of disability is:
 - a. not necessary
 - b. is recommended/after _____ years _____ months, and therefore this certificate shall be valid till (DD/MM/YY) _____
- 4. The applicant has submitted the following document as proof of residence:

Nature of Document	Date of Issue	Details of authority issuing certificate

(Authorised Signatory of notified Medical Authority)

(Name and Seal)

Countersigned

{Countersignature and seal of the CMO/Medical Superintendent/Head of Government Hospital, in case the certificate is issued by a medical authority who is not a government servant (with seal)}

Signature/Thumb impression of the person in whose favour disability certificate is issued

Note: In case this certificate is issued by a medical authority who is not a government servant, it shall be valid only if countersigned by the Chief Medical Officer of the District. Note: The principal rules were published in the Gazette of India vide notification number S.O. 908(E), dated the 31st December, 1996

7.4 Suitability Certificate for Availing Admission against Differently Abled Person (PD) (To be submitted at the Time of Counseling/Admission)

Space for Photograph

Certified that	Shri / Km/	Smt. *	
son/daughter/wif	e of Shri/Smt.		is physically handicapped
due to			and he/she is fit for
undergoing	the	course(s)	
		TWYLTE GELL	at IGDTUW or NSUT.

Name & Signature of The Officer In-charge Vocational Rehabilitation Centre for Physically Handicapped 9,10,11Karkardooma, VikasMarg, Delhi-110092.

7.5	C	ertificate	for	Economicall	v W	eaker	Section	(EWS)
			- CO.		4.00	The state of the s		

Government of _______
(Name & Address of the authority issuing the certificate)

INCOME & ASSEST CERTIFICATE TO BE PRODUCED BY CANDIDATES SEEKING RESEWRVATION UNDER ECONOMICALLY WEAKER SECTIONS

Certificate No	Dat	e:
VALID	FOR THE YEAR	
	/Smt./Kumari	
	resident of,	
District	in the State/Union	Territory Pin Code whose
photograph is attested below belongs	s to Economically Weaker Sections,	since the gross annual income*
of his/her lfamily** is below Rs. 81	akh (Rupees Eight Lakh only) for the	e financial year
His/her family does not own or posse	ss any of the following assets***:	
i) 5 acres of agricultural land a	and above;	
ii) Residential flat of 1000 sq. i		
	ards and above in notified municipal ards and above in. areas other than the	(5)
(v) Residential plot of 200 sq. y	ards and above in, areas other than th	e nouried municipanties.
2. Shri/Smt./Kumari	belongs to the caste	which is not
recognized as a Scheduled Caste, Sch	neduled Tribe and Other Backward C	lasses.
	Signature with seal of Office	
	Name	
	Designation	
Recent Passport size		
attested photograph of		
the applicant		

*Note 1: Income covered all sources i.e. salary, agriculture, business, profession, etc.

^{**}Note 2:The term 'Family" for this purpose include the person, who seeks benefit of reservation, his/her parents and siblings below the age of 18 years as also his/her spouse and children below the age of 18 years

^{***}Note 3: The property held by a "Family' in different locations or different places/cities have been clubbed while applying the land or property holding test to determine EWS status.

Chapter 8 Annexures

8.1 Documents Required at the Time of Physical reporting for Admission

(Applicable if physical reporting is done in any of the admission round)

- i) Receipt of the Admission Fee Payment.
- ii) Online created Registration Form duly signed by guardian/parent and candidate.
- iii) Printout of filled choices of University (printed after closing of registration)
- iv) Three passport size photograph.
- v) Printout of the Admit Card & Score Card of NATA 2021
- vi) Marks sheet of the qualifying examination i.e. Class XII or equivalent or 10+3 Diploma examination.
- vii) Printout out of Seat Allotment Letter downloaded from www.jacdelhi.nic.in
- viii) Date of Birth Certificate as indicated in High School or equivalent examination i.e. Class X.
- ix) Reserved category / sub-category Certificate
- x) Medical fitness certificate original in case of General / SC / ST / CW / OBC / EWS/ CW (Format available at 7.2 in this brochure).
- xi) PD sub-category:
 - a. A certificate of physical disability issued by the Competent Authority as per the provision of the Persons with Disabilities Act 2016 in the prescribed format as given under the Act.
 - b. The Candidate with benchmark disabilities shall produce the medical certificate issued by the Govt. Hospitals duly notified by the Govt. of NCT of Delhi/Other State government and further duly verified by the Chief Medical Officer of the concerned Government Hospital.
 - c. A certificate, duly recommended by any of the Vocational Rehabilitation Centres for the handicapped, including Vocational Rehabilitation Centre for the handicapped, 9-11 VikasMarg, Karkarduma, Delhi 110092, established by the Ministry of Labour and Employment.
- xii) For Defence (CW) sub-category, candidate needs to submit all the documents/certificates specified corresponding to the priority applicable to candidate

For Further Updates of Admission to B. Arch. Program Refer to JAC Delhi 2021 website: www.jacdelhi.nic.in

For general queries send email on helpdesk.barch.jacdelhi@gmail.com Only for payment related queries send email on payments.jacdelhi@gmail.com

Disclaimer: This information brochure contains, information for admission to B.Arch Program at IGDTUW and NSUT. All possible care has been taken to compile the information correctly in the brochure, however in case of any inadvertent errors/displacements, the official version of JAC Delhi and Government Authorities shall be final

Any dispute relating to contents of the admission brochure and admission process will be subject to Delhi Jurisdiction only

